
 
Page 1 of 3 

 

APPROVED 
MINUTES 
PRESERVATION COMMISSION  
SEPTEMBER 23, 2015 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Brent Bogen, Lo Milani, Paul Fessler, Brian Leech, Elizabeth DeLong 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Sue Swords, Anthony Heddlesten, Craig Kavensky, John Strieter 
 
ASSOCIATE MEMBERS:  Linda Anderson, Jeff Dismer, Diane Oestreich 
 
STAFF PRESENT:  Ben Griffith, Brandy Howe 

 
CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Bogen called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM.  
 
AN ORDER APPROVING THE WRITTEN AGENDA 
 
MOTION: Milani made a motion to approve the written agenda. Leech seconded the motion. The motion 
carried on a vote of 5-0. 
 
AN ORDER APPROVING THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 20, 2015 MEETING 
 
Chairman Bogen asked if there were any corrections to the minutes of the May 20, 2015 meeting. Lo 
made a motion to approve the minutes as presented. Bogen seconded the motion. The motion carried 
on a vote of 5-0. 
 
WELCOME NEW MEMBERS 
Chairman Bogen welcomed new Commissioners Paul Fessler, Brian Leech, and Elizabeth DeLong and 
asked each to give a brief explanation of their background and interest in the Commission.  
 
PRESENTATION OF HERITAGE RESOURCES PLANNING PROJECT 
Chairman Bogen introduced Nick Kalogeresis and Becky Hurley from Lakota Group, the consulting firm 
selected to carry out the planning project. Mr. Kalogeresis indicated that Lakota is a firm based in 
Chicago but has worked on a number of projects in the Quad Cities area, most recently an update to the 
Moline comprehensive plan. Mr. Kalogeresis gave a 15 minute presentation describing what a heritage 
resources plan is, why it’s a great project for the City to embark on, the project approach, and project 
schedule. At the conclusion of the presentation, Mr. Kalogeresis asked if there were any questions.  
 
Milani asked what about a plan the City had in place in the 1990s. Associate Oestreich indicated that 
neighborhood plans were adopted in the 1990s but a comprehensive preservation plan had not yet been 
prepared by the City. Associate Anderson added that the Jacobson document was a historical survey that 
was completed in 1999. Milani asked for clarification on how that plan differs from the one currently 
underway. Howe indicated that the current preservation planning project would produce a policy 
document.  
 
Milani asked what the principal aim of the project is. Mr. Kalogeresis responded that a plan will put in 
place a process that will help the City balance community development decisions with preservation of 
significant resources.  
 
Leech asked for some background on why the Commission was pursuing this project. Associate 
Oestreich responded that many of the documents that had been produced in the past were primarily to 
help the Commission make determinations as well as serve as an education tool. She added that this 
project would result in a policy document that would be adopted by the City Council, similar to the recently 
adopted Comprehensive Plan. When Council reviews and considers development proposals, they refer to 
these policy documents to help guide their decision making. A recent example is a Council decision to 



 
Page 2 of 3 

 

deny a rezoning request because it was not consistent with the Comprehensive Plan future land use map. 
Associate Oestreich added that this project is being funded by a CLG grant, for which City Council gave 
their approval to the Commission to submit an application.  
 
DeLong asked if the preservation plan will have any teeth once it is adopted. Associate Oestreich 
responded that as a policy document it will provide guidance, but will not have teeth in the same way that 
a regulatory document would. Mr. Kalogeresis added that the preservation plan will also serve as a work 
plan for the Commission and identify projects and partnerships. Chairman Bogen added that this project 
dovetails nicely with the Commission’s discussions over the past two years on how to better educate the 
community about preservation and the importance of historic resources. Fessler added that an adopted 
plan would also give a little more weight to preservation-related topics considered by the Commission and 
Council.  
 
Leech asked about the function and makeup of the project steering committee. Mr. Kalogeresis 
responded that the steering committee has already been formed, includes a broad representation from 
the community, and functions to provide feedback on preservation issues and on draft documents that will 
be produced. DeLong asked who is serving on the steering committee. Howe provided a list from memory 
of members.  
 
Chairman Bogen asked if there were any additional questions for the consultants before they head out. 
Fessler asked if they would provide examples from other communities of new ideas that have been 
implemented. Mr. Kalogeresis responded that there will be case studies and best practices included in the 
final document. Chairman Bogen thanked the consultants for presenting and Mr. Kalogeresis and Ms. 
Hurley exited the meeting.  
 
Milani indicated that this plan could be a powerful instrument to give to City Council. Milani asked how this 
project was started. Chairman Bogen responded that funding was made available by the Illinois Historic 
Preservation Agency to CLG communities for preservation projects. Staff had presented the idea of 
pursing a preservation plan instead of a brochure project, as has been done in the past and the 
Commission then requested permission from City Council to apply for the grant. Milani asked how much 
the City was awarded for the project. Howe responded that the total project was budgeted at $30,000 with 
$21,000 awarded and $9,000 from in-kind staff support.  
 
Milani asked about the next step in the project schedule. Howe indicated that the next consultant visit 
would be October 22

nd
 for a public info session; the location and time are to be determined. Howe 

encouraged all Commissioners to attend the community meeting. Associate Anderson echoed this 
suggestion, adding that it is valuable to hear what the general public has to say at these types of events. 
DeLong asked how that meeting would be advertised. Howe responded that the typical means for getting 
the word out would be utilized, but welcomed suggestions from them. Associate Anderson suggested 
staff contact WVIK. Howe welcomed that suggestion.  
 
MOLINE MAIN STREET QR CODE PROJECT 
Chairman Bogen directed the Commission to the next item on the agenda—a short presentation by 
Associate Anderson on Moline’s QR code project. Associate Anderson provided some background 
information on the QR code project, a partnership between Moline Main Street and the City of Moline. 
She indicated that the project involved the creation of window clings to be placed in historic buildings in 
the downtown with QR codes that link to a walking tour map as well as pictures and stories about historic 
structures. A lengthy discussion ensued on what this project entails, at the conclusion of which Associate 
Anderson asked the Commission if this is something they would like to pursue. It was determined that 
staff would get in contact with the City of Moline to get a better understanding of their role in the project 
and to see if it would feasible to replicate in Rock Island. Staff will also get in contact with the City’s 
website committee to learn whether or not the City’s website could host the project.  
 
OTHER BUSINESS 
Chairman Bogen asked if there was any other business to discuss. Associate Anderson asked if the 
limestone curbs that will be removed as part of the 6

th
 Avenue street reconstruction project can or will be 



 
Page 3 of 3 

 

saved and if so, whether or not they could be used to replace crumbling limestone curb in other locations 
in the City. Howe indicated she would check with the Public Works Department to find out if the request 
could be accommodated.  
 
Associate Oestreich asked if the Commission had any suggestions for a potential location for the rotating 
brochure kiosk that had formally been located at the Main Library. Leech suggested one of the other 
library branch locations. Oestreich responded that there was likely not enough space at those locations 
and that a more public location, like Hy-Vee, might be an option.   
 
Chairman Bogen asked if there was any other business to discuss. Griffith stated that no landmark 
applications or applications for a certificate of appropriateness have been submitted. Griffith reminded 
everyone to be mindful of any ex parte communications and to contact the Planning Office with any 
questions regarding any items on upcoming agendas.  
 
ADJOURNMENT: 
Chairman Bogen asked for a motion to adjourn. Fessler moved to adjourn. Milani seconded the motion. 
The motion carried on a vote of 5-0. The meeting was adjourned at 6:35 p.m. 
 
Minutes submitted by Brandy Howe 


